Freedom of Information Act 2000/Environmental Information Regulations 2004  
re: Cleaning Services Contract
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
Please provide detailed responses to the following questions for all current/live contracts related to cleaning of the following categories:
• 90910000 - Cleaning services.
• 90911200 - Building-cleaning services.
• 90911300 - Window-cleaning services.
• 90919200 - Office cleaning services.

The contract meeting the criteria set in the question (based on CPV codes) is PAN2018 Specialist Cleaning Services

Questions include: 

1. What is the total value of the contract awarded to the successful bidder?

Answer:

£1,524,000 incl. VAT

2. What is the duration of the contract, including start and end dates?

Start Date: 1 February 2022 

Max End Date:31 January 2027

3. If the contract is subject to an extension please specify whether the option to apply the extension has been taken. 

Yes, the contract was awarded for three years with an option to extend for a period or periods totalling no more than a further two years.

4. Please confirm when contract will be next put to competitor tender

June 2026.

5. What are the specific services or products provided under this contract?

Low-frequency reactive, emergency, ad-hoc and regular scheduled cleaning on individual basis for building and structures, not limited to:1) offices;2) depots;3) libraries;4) day centres;5) neighbourhood centres;6) housing estates;7) one-off deep cleans of flats and houses;8) school kitchens/dining rooms;9) school kitchens/dining rooms ventilation grills;10) Leicester City Council bus shelters. 
6. What were the criteria used to select the contractor?
Quality Weighting: 50%; Price Weighting: 50%
7. How many bids were received for this contract?

10
8. Can you provide a copy of the winning bid proposal?

This information is commercially sensitive and is exempt under the provisions of Section 43.2 - Commercial Interests. This is a statutory refusal notice required by Section 17.1 of the FOI Act.  

Disclosure could prejudice commercial interest of the supplier appointed and could result in unfair advantage to their competition in the forthcoming procurement for a replacement contract. 
While openness and transparency are generally in public interest, in this instance this is outweighed by the public interest to secure best value for this public contract via a competitive tender, which would be affected by disclosure. It would distort competition in that market, which in itself would not be in the public interest.
9. What are the key performance indicators (KPIs) and service level agreements (SLAs) specified in the contract?

Attached Appendix 4.

10. Are there any penalties or incentives included in the contract for performance?

See attached Appendix 4.

11. What is the payment schedule for the contract?

Monthly invoices
12. Were there any amendments or modifications made to the original contract? If so, what were they?

The contract was modified in line with Reg 72 of Public Contracts Regulations to allow for additional works, services or supplies by the original supplier that have become necessary and were not included in the initial procurement.

13. What is the process for monitoring and evaluating the contractor's performance?

See attached Appendix 4.
14. Can you provide details of any subcontractors involved in fulfilling this contract?

No sub-contractors.
15. What are the terms and conditions regarding contract termination?

Contract 16.5: "The Service Provider shall hold and maintain the Required Insurances for a minimum of six years following the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement."

Contract 18.4(e) "..... at the written direction of the Council, delete or return Personal Data (and any copies of it) to the Council on termination of the Agreement unless the Service Provider is required by Law to retain the Personal Data." 

Contract 19.3: "On or before the Termination Date the Service Provider shall ensure that all documents and/or computer records in its possession, custody or control which relate to personal information of the Council's employees, rate-payers or service users, are delivered up to the Council or securely destroyed."

Contract 21: 21.1  During the Term and for a period of seven years after the Termination Date, the Council may conduct or be subject to an audit for the following purposes: (a) to verify the accuracy of Charges (and proposed or actual variations to them in accordance with this Agreement) and/or the costs of all suppliers (including Sub-Contractors) of the Services at the level of detail agreed in schedule 3 (Charges and payment);  

(b)  to review the integrity, confidentiality and security of any data relating to the Council or any service users;

(c)  to review the Service Provider's compliance with the DPA, the FOIA, in accordance with clause 18 (Data Protection) and clause 17 (Freedom of Information) and any other legislation applicable to the Services;

(d)  to review any records created;

(e) to review any books of account kept by the Service Provider in connection with the provision of the Services;

(f)  to carry out the audit and certification of the Council's accounts; or

(g)  to carry out an examination pursuant to sections 44 and 46 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the Council has used its resources.

16. Were there any conflicts of interest declared during the procurement process?

None.
17. What measures are in place to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations?

Area Cleaning Managers are responsible for managing compliance and adherence to the relevant laws and regulations (BICS) British Institute of Cleaning Science.

18. Can you provide a breakdown of the costs associated with this contract?

Total spend

2022 spend £239k

2023 spend £459k

2024 spend £758k

19. What are the expected outcomes or deliverables of the contract?

To provide Leicester City Council with excellent cleaning services throughout all disciplines providing value for money and cost savings where possible.

20. How does this contract align with the public sector body's strategic objectives?

Contract procured in line with the applicable law and regulations. This is an essential service.

21. Were there any disputes or issues raised during the contract period? If so, how were they resolved?

Any issues or disputes raised were dealt with as per the authority’s complaints and disputes procedure that align with the current contract.
22. Can you provide details of any audits or reviews conducted on this contract?

Regular review meetings are held with the current supplier.

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.

If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 

Internal Review

Information Governance & Risk
Email: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk
